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Continue a little further along Moss Lane 
and on the right you will see . . .

     Proctors Farm
This is another pre -Victorian farm now without 
land attached.  In the 1880s it was farmed by 
the Kellett family, father James, mother Mary 
and adult son Richard, three adult daughters, 
another daughter of 15 years and a son at school 
aged 12.  By this time some of the young men 
in the area had not followed their father into the 
farm but worked for the railway.  This was the 
case with Richard.  His three sisters were cotton 
weavers, as were many of the girls on Charnock 
Moss.  By this time weaving moved from the 
home into factories.  A later trade directory 
shows that William Eaves’ family had moved 
into the farm.  Whether by sale of tenancy is not 
known.  We do know that his son, Oliver took 
over and was listed as ‘farmer’ there in 1922, and 
he must have done some renovations in 1930 as 
that date and his initials appear in the stonework 
on the front facade.  In this year Oliver ‘s age 
would be about 46 years.  

Continue along Moss Lane over a stile and 
then to another stile on the left that takes 
you across a �eld at roughly 90 degrees 
and to another stile. Continue down a path 
between a hedge and a fence, on the left 
you will see . . .
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From the Community Centre take the path 
that leads through the park past the play 
area and eventually joins Kingsfold Drive. 
Turn right down Bramble Close and follow 
the footpath that leads into Moss Lane.  After 
225m and having gone straight across at the 
crossroads you will see on the left . . .

       Holme Farm   

Bought by the Simpson family in the 1960s, 
this farm is shown on the tithe map of1841 
although the original farmhouse was demol-
ished and replaced with the two modern 
houses there today.  It stood on the site of the 
present farm shop building and all that remains 
is a solitary stone gatepost marking the original 
entrance.  In the 1960s the farm covered around 
21 acres and the family occasionally rented 
more land from surrounding farms when need-
ed.  They had a herd of milking cows, about 60 
in number and thousands of battery hens.  This 
form of egg production was commonplace in 
Lancashire at the time.  The farm delivered milk 
and eggs to local houses, and in the early days 
all the milk was bottled untreated as green 
top milk.  This changed in the 1980s with the 
purchase of a pasteurising machine.      
    Today they collect milk from local farms and 
distribute it but have no cattle.  They have a 
very nice farm shop but do check opening 
hours online if you wish to visit.  Two wells have 
been discovered close to the buildings.  Before 
piped water was brought to the area in the 
1890s all the farms would have had at least one 
well.  

    Sibbering’s Cottage

This cottage appears on the tithe map so we 
know it dates to at least 1838 and is likely 
to be much older as it is one of the typical 
low cottages commonplace in the Fylde and 
West Lancashire plains.  There are examples in 
Ratten Lane and Townley Lane Hutton, and in 
the Lytham area.  It is possible it was built in 
the 1700s or even the late 1600s.  Sibering is a 
surname and may refer to an original or early 
inhabitant.  In 1841 the tithe map states that it 
was tenanted by Seth Cook and it comprised 
a house, shippon, fold and orchard and had 
six �elds, four of meadow, one of pasture and 
one with an arable crop.  In all the ‘farm’ held 
about �ve acres, which today we would call a 
smallholding.  It probably produced enough to 
support the family with perhaps a small surplus 
in a good year.  There is no mention of Seth Cook 
on the �rst full census of 1841, which is a puzzle, 
but perhaps between 1838 when the tithe was 
being surveyed, and 1841, when it was �nally 
published, the family had moved away.  As 
was usual in these old cottages the roof was of 
thatch, which was only replaced by slate about 
30 years ago.

Follow the track that leads into Nib Lane and 
continue 350m.  At the crossroads turn right  
to the site of . . .

    Lord’s Farm
This farm is believed 
to be one of the oldest 
on the Moss.  It was 
vacated in the 1990s 
and became a target 
for vandalism, resulting 
in a �re, and so was 
demolished.  There is evidence of foundations 
and some farm buildings are still present 
although in poor condition.  This makes them a 
good habitat for barn owls and bats.

    The farm was run by the Eaves family who 
had been in this part of Penwortham for many 
generations.  They appear in the schedule of the 
tithe map, published in 1841, farmed by Richard 
Eaves and his family, and the farm is described 
as a mix of pasture and meadow, with a house, 
barn and garden, a small orchard and an acre 
of arable land.  All together not more than a 
handful of acres, barely enough to support a 
household.  By the time the last member of the 
family left in the late 20th century they were no 
longer tenants but owners and held around 70 
acres.  
    Looking at census returns for the period 1841 
to 1911 it soon becomes clear that families 
involved with agriculture tended to produce 
large families!  With little mechanical help they 
needed a small army of children who usually left 
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